Earth Negotzatzons Bulletin

A Reportmg Servzce for Envzronment and Development Negotzations

Online at http://www.iisd.ca/climate/ccwg5/

Vol. 12 No. 405

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (1ISD)

Tuesday, 7 April 2009

AWG-LCA 5 AND AWG-KP 7 HIGHLIGHTS:
MONDAY, 6 APRIL 2009

On Monday, the AWG-LCA held contact groups on
adaptation, mitigation, shared vision, and technology and
finance. The AWG-KP held a contact group and informal
consultations on LULUCEF, and informal consultations on issues
such as Annex I emission reductions, potential consequences,
legal matters and the flexibility mechanisms.

AWG-LCA CONTACT GROUPS

ADAPTATION: Focusing on risk and insurance, many
parties underscored early warning systems, vulnerability of SIDS
and LDCs, and data gathering.

AOSIS proposed a multi-window mechanism with the
following components: insurance; rehabilitation/compensation;
and risk management. She said that the mechanism could
facilitate public and private sector coordination. Noting that
insurance transfers risk but does not reduce it, AUSTRALIA,
with CANADA, underscored risk reduction strategies. The EU
referenced existing institutions and said insurance can provide
pricing for risk. The G-77/CHINA underlined inefficient funding
and implementation of existing mechanisms.

The EU noted the importance of data for index-based
insurance. BANGLADESH underscored the need for detailed
sectoral and regional vulnerability assessments. BARBADOS
said data gathering should not be used as an excuse to avoid
instituting an insurance system, with TUVALU cautioning
against an “endless assessment process.” The GAMBIA
cautioned against maladaptation due to lack of planning, and
AUSTRALIA noted potential disincentives for risk reduction
resulting from insurance.

MEXICO, BARBADOS and others underscored the unequal
distribution of losses and risks. AUSTRALIA called for country-
driven mechanisms. THAILAND highlighted vulnerability of
rural areas. MEXICO said territorial planning should take into
account long-term risks, noting the possibility of population
relocation. NORWAY and the GAMBIA identified women and
children as the most vulnerable.

CANADA said the Convention should play a catalytic role
and urged linkages between the adaptation and risk reduction
communities. The US said disaster relief and resilience strategies
should be integrated. THAILAND emphasized mainstreaming
risk management into national policies. JAPAN highlighted
the Hyogo Framework of Action. MAURITIUS stressed
infrastructure for enhancing resilience and highlighted the need
for sector-specific plans.

Noting negative impacts of response measures, SAUDI
ARABIA highlighted the role of insurance in commodity
hedging. MUNICH CLIMATE INITIATIVE noted the expertise
of the private sector and its willingness to cooperate.

MITIGATION: Discussions on subparagraphs 1(b)(iv) and
(v) of the Bali Action Plan focused on sectoral and market-based
approaches, respectively.

On sectoral approaches, the G-77/CHINA said that national
actions in sectors can foster opportunities for relevant initiatives
related to technological cooperation. QATAR opposed trade
barriers or new international regulations on a sectoral basis.
JAPAN highlighted cooperation between the public and
private sectors. AUSTRALIA stressed existing voluntary
sectoral cooperation initiatives. CHINA said capacity building
and financing should be essential components of discussions
of sectoral approaches. ALGERIA noted potential negative
consequences of the Directive 2008/101/EC to include aviation
emissions under the EU Emissions Trading Scheme. The
EU highlighted the Directive’s de minimis rule, stating that
most flights from developing countries will be excluded.
NORWAY noted her country’s proposal to introduce a target for
international shipping emissions.

On markets, CHINA said they should not be used to pass
responsibility to developing countries, and SAUDI ARABIA and
the LDCs stressed that markets should not substitute mitigation
activities in developed countries. BOLIVIA said carbon markets
are not the only solution.

The PHILIPPINES and SAUDI ARABIA emphasized that
market-based approaches are not covered by the Convention,
while AUSTRALIA favored considering the flexibility
mechanisms also under the AWG-LCA given that not all Annex I
parties participate in discussions under the AWG-KP.

The EU proposed complementing NAMASs with market
mechanisms, and elaborated on sectoral crediting and trading
for developing countries with no-lose targets below business-as-
usual baselines. He stated that markets could provide flexibility,
incentives and revenues. The US supported market mechanisms
that facilitate action and are efficient, environmentally robust,
credible and sustainable.

The LDCs urged consideration of barriers to market
participation. The G-77/CHINA, BANGLADESH, the
REPUBLIC OF KOREA and CHINA underscored the role of
governments and the public sector in enhancing mitigation.

The REPUBLIC OF KOREA and NEW ZEALAND stressed
the need to engage the private sector. INDONESIA highlighted
insufficiency of voluntary funding. COSTA RICA supported a
broad portfolio of financial mechanisms.

SHARED VISION: Discussions focused on a long-term
global goal for emission reductions. Many countries emphasized
that a long-term goal should achieve the ultimate objective
of the Convention. The G-77/CHINA stressed that a shared
vision should be comprised of, and defined equally by, the four
building blocks.

AUSTRALIA noted the goal should reflect the collective
ambitions of all parties, cover all emission sources and sinks,
have a base year and a target year, and also include a mid-term

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@jiisd.org> is written and edited by Maria Gutiérrez, Ph.D., Kati Kulovesi, Ph.D., Kelly Levin, Miquel Mufioz, Ph.D.,
and Yulia Yamineva. The Digital Editor is Leila Mead. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@jisd.org>. The Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James
“Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@jisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the
Government of the United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government
of Canada (through CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal
Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the
Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government
of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry
of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of
Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry (through the Global Industrial and
Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), the Government of Iceland, and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin
into French has been provided by the International Organization of the Francophonie (IOF). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish has been provided by the
Ministry of Environment of Spain. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts
from the Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting
services, contact the Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, United States of
America. The ENB Team at AWG-KP 7 & AWG-LCA 5 can be contacted by e-mail at <kati@iisd.org>.




T |Reporting
=§|SeEwce.’s

Tuesday, 7 April 2009

Vol. 12 No. 405 Page 2

goal. SOUTH AFRICA said that the goal should be based on
sound science, balance mitigation and adaptation, and introduce
effective means of implementation and sustainable development.
MEXICO highlighted that a long-term goal should include

a quantitative goal and emission pathways. The REPUBLIC

OF KOREA highlighted economic opportunities to shift to a
low-carbon economy. The BAHAMAS, with the GAMBIA,
underlined urgency of emission reductions. The LDCs said that,
in addition to numbers, a long-term goal should aim to increase
resilience of ecosystems and economies.

BRAZIL and INDIA called for careful consideration of
assumptions underlying scientific arguments. BRAZIL noted
that there are several pathways to avoid warming of more than
2°C. PAKISTAN noted that an emission target is not the only
way of expressing a long-term goal as it can also be described
through MRV of support to developing countries which would
lead to similar emission reductions. SAUDI ARABIA noted that
his country does not see a long-term goal, as a numerical goal.
BOLIVIA said other parts of a long-term goal should also be
quantified, including, inter alia, changes in developed countries
consumption patterns and compensation to developing countries
for lost development opportunities.

CLIMATE ACTION NETWORK stressed that “mitigation is
the best adaptation.”

TECHNOLOGY AND FINANCE: Discussions focused on
technology, including potential mechanisms, I[PRs, R&D and
international cooperation.

On mechanisms, GHANA elaborated on his country’s
proposal to issue carbon credits under the UNFCCC based on
the transfer of environmentally-sound technologies, and said
the credits would be tradable, voluntary, and complementary to
the CDM. AUSTRALIA stressed the need for a multi-faceted
approach to technology. CHINA noted the need for different
approaches at international and national levels. BANGLADESH
supported regional innovation centers, with INDIA proposing a
network of such centers. The EU highlighted the Convention’s
catalytic role. MEXICO noted a technology fund as part
of his country’s green fund proposal. AOSIS suggested an
international mechanism to fund development of SIDS-specific
technologies. Noting that current discussions reminded him of
Buzz Lightyear’s motto “to infinity and beyond,” BAHAMAS
underscored the need to ensure deployment of existing
technologies now, and not in the distant future. TANZANIA
stressed the need for publicly-funded adaptation technologies.

On IPRs, the G-77/CHINA underscored the need for an
international cooperation system on public domain technologies,
and said patented resources should be made available at an
affordable cost to developing countries. AUSTRALIA said
poor IPR protection can hinder deployment and development
of technologies. SWITZERLAND underscored the need for
strong IPR protection, noting that in many cases low-carbon
technologies are not IPR-protected. CHINA said joint developed-
developing country R&D projects should result in shared IPRs.
PAKISTAN underscored patent pools and time-limited patents,
as well as national incentives in developed countries to promote
engagement of IPR holders with developing countries.

On international cooperation and R&D, JAPAN and others
underscored the need for cooperation on technology between
governments, academics and industry. CHINA said public
investment is the key to climate technology R&D. INDIA
showed delegates a 5 Watt LED light bulb, saying it produces
as much light as a 40 Watt incandescent light bulb or an 8
Watt compact fluorescent one. He explained that the bulb was
designed in the Netherlands, engineered and produced in India,
and costs US$ 24, highlighting the high price as an example
of why R&D is crucial to make climate-friendly technologies
affordable.

AWG-KP CONTACT GROUPS AND INFORMAL
CONSULTATIONS

ANNEX I EMISSION REDUCTIONS: During informal
consultations, parties addressed draft conclusions on the scale of
Annex I emission reductions. The draft text includes a reference
to stabilizing concentrations below 350 ppm, which would
require reductions by Annex I countries of at least 45% below

k)

1990 levels by 2020, and at least 95% by 2050. The reference
was opposed by several parties. Differences also remained over
whether to include reference to criteria that could support further
consideration of the scale of Annex I emission reductions, with
some parties preferring to refer to “information” instead of
“criteria.”

LULUCEF: During informal consultations, parties addressed
the Co-Chairs’ non-paper and agreed that it provided a good
basis for further work.

In the contact group, the Co-Chairs explained that the draft
conclusions on LULUCF were postponed, pending discussions
on legal matters. They noted that the draft conclusions could be
expected to be short and include a call for submissions and an
invitation to provide relevant data.

BRAZIL suggested that the data invited from parties address
two things: the impact of proposed accounting methods for
forest management (such as the bar approach) on potential
numbers, given that existing historical data may not be relevant
to the forecast nature of the exercise; and how factoring out
anthropogenic from non-anthropogenic effects would be
addressed.

TUVALU pointed to three elements from his submission that
were improperly reflected in the Co-Chairs’ non-paper, clarifying
that: forest biomass decline was not meant as an alternative to
forest management; the concept of “force majeure” was missing
an element; and the proposal was for net-net accounting for
forest management and other elected activities starting at the
beginning of the commitment period. He also clarified that his
proposal for accounting for harvested wood products was meant
as a package that would allow the “fast tree fix”” and other such
anomalies in decision 16/CMP.1 to disappear.

FLEXIBILITY MECHANISMS: In informal consultations,
delegates finalized the consideration of the Co-Chairs’ non-paper
on flexibility mechanisms, including sections on JI and emissions
trading. Very few deletions were made. Informal consultations
have ended, and the group will reconvene in a contact group.

POTENTIAL CONSEQUENCES: Informal consultations
continued in the morning. Parties discussed options for draft
conclusions, including whether to advance existing text with
multiple sets of brackets or to adopt a more general text.

LEGAL MATTERS: During informal consultations, parties
considered the Chair’s revised non-paper, which includes, inter
alia: options for an amended Annex B; options for a new Annex
C; and options for consequential textual amendments to the
Protocol.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Several delegates were heard commenting on certain
Umbrella Group countries’ “strong positions” in the AWG-KP
informal consultations on Annex I emission reductions and legal
matters. Some were overheard speculating about these parties’
motivations. “It seems like they just want to know what kind
of commitments the US will take before moving ahead and to
explore different legal options,” said one. “To me, it sounds
like they do not want any amendments to the Kyoto Protocol
to be agreed in Copenhagen. Maybe they want to focus on
the AWG-LCA and perhaps even explore 'softer options' for
commitments,” commented another. At the same time, the eyes
of some developed country delegates seemed to be popping
out of their heads as they tried to digest ambitious proposals
for mid-term emission reduction targets for individual Annex I
countries tabled by two developing countries under the AWG-
KP.

On the AWG-LCA side, some were commenting on what
they felt was a lack of substantive progress. Others, however,
considered this normal, saying that the objective of this meeting
was only to elaborate on ideas for the negotiating text and
properly switch to the negotiating mode in June. Also, many
noted that it makes no sense for parties to shift their positions
until they hear more detailed ideas from the US.

“At least we have ‘seen’ some very concrete examples of
technology advancement,” commented one appreciative delegate
emerging from the AWG-LCA contact group, referring to the
intervention by an Indian delegate who had brought an efficient
but expensive light bulb to the meeting.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


